

Department of State

# TELEGRAM

INDICATE:

- COLLECT
- CHARGE TO

~~SECRET~~  
 ORG 7 SIMON  
 xr POL 3 SIMON/PRIMIN

DISTRIBUTION

E.O. 11652: ~~SECRET~~ GDS  
 TAGS: OVIP (SIMON, William E.), PFOR, CE  
 SUBJECT: Treasury Secretary Simon's Meeting with Prime Minister

CN 1270  
 22 APR 75 1815

ACTION: Secstate WASHDC

INFO: Amembassy MANILA

ECON

CHRON  
 A MB  
 DCM

~~SECRET~~ COLOMBO ~~1015~~ 1270

MANILA PASS SECRETARY SIMON'S PARTY

FROM SECRETARY SIMON

1. SUMMARY: On April 21 I had candid, highly satisfactory meeting with Prime Minister Bandaranaike of Sri Lanka. We covered broad range of international and domestic economic and political issues. There were no substantive surprises. She several times expressed warm appreciation for American assistance. I was most impressed with her interest and grasp of variety of topics. In recognition of Sri Lanka's growing international role as September 1976 Non-Aligned Conference approaches, I believe United States would do well to continue to demonstrate strong interest in her style of moderate leadership and to maintain significant aid level to Sri Lanka. END SUMMARY.

DRAFTED BY:

ECON:JMHawley:jg

DRAFTING DATE

4-22-75

TEL EXT.

APPROVED BY:

DCM:PMByrne

CLEARANCES:

The Ambassador

Secretary Simon (in draft)

*JMS*

~~SECRET~~  
 Classification

~~CONFIDENTIAL~~

Page 2 of

Classification

MRN

2. On April 21, I had unusually forthcoming, wide-ranging, one hour twenty-minute meeting alone with Prime Minister Bandaranaike. I extended President Ford's personal regards and expressed his Administration's strong desire for continued good relations. I hoped my visit would be seen as reflection of Ford Administration's interest in Sri Lanka at this time of extreme economic adversity. There were no significant outstanding bilateral issues and I was in Sri Lanka and in South Asia primarily to observe and to learn.

3. She responded by expressing appreciation for visit and by thanking United States for recent strong support in form of food (100,000 tons wheat flour) and agricultural development (\$8 million fertilizer loan) assistance. I said Ford Administration was pleased that in FY 1975 it had provided highest level of American aid to Sri Lanka in any single year. Prime Minister was repeatedly appreciative of U.S. aid during conversation. She said Sri Lanka was not ~~poor~~<sup>beggar</sup> nation and wanted to make its own way. Substantial assistance, however, was essential through present very difficult economic period. She made no specific request for additional assistance.

4. After recalling her warm relations with President ~~Nix~~ Nixon, she said she had read great deal about President Ford and would very much like ~~her~~ to meet him.

~~CONFIDENTIAL~~  
Classification

Classification

I said I hoped that could be arranged, but extended no explicit invitation.

5. In terms of Sri Lanka's continually declining terms of trade, she summarized powerful adverse impact of last two years world economic conditions. She expressed hope that ways could be found to stabilize prices for Sri Lanka's primary export products, especially tea.

6. Referring to our current projection, and to consensus I had observed in discussion with OECD Economic Ministers, I reviewed improving world and American economic outlook but mentioned danger of renewed inflation. Concerning Sri Lanka's outlook, I expressed pleasure over encouraging reports of Sri Lanka's offshore oil potential and mentioned an American firm's interest in recent worldwide call for ~~drilling~~ drilling service contract bids.

7. On issue of finding longer term solutions to balance of payments financing problems of Most Seriously Affected (MSA) developing countries, I urged that Sri Lanka consider carefully and sympathetically proposed trust fund in association with ~~XXX~~ IMF. She was keenly interested.

8. We discussed Sri Lanka's leading economic problem: food. I mentioned fiscal burden, price distortions, and production disincentives that arise from heavily subsidized consumption. She acknowledged this was serious difficulty for Sri Lanka but pointed out political risks of tough economic decisions.

Classification

I said we faced same dilemma.

9. On international political issues, Prime Minister said Sri Lanka will continue carefully ~~has~~ balanced approach to large nations, specifically mentioning Soviet Union, PRC, India, and Pakistan. She did not raise Indian Ocean Peace Zone or Diego Garcia. I congratulated her on Sri Lanka's hosting of 1976 Non-Aligned Conference. ~~XXXX~~ She said she was looking forward to it and GSL was actively preparing for that event. She believes Summit will stimulate significant economic benefits to Sri Lanka.

10. She touched briefly on Viet-Nam, expressing a sadness over human tragedy and need for much increased humanitarian aid.

11. In detailed discussion about national political scene, Prime Minister said 1971 insurrection was extremely serious threat to her Government and to general political stability. She expressed deep appreciation for rapid, substantial American assistance in that crisis. I said that we greatly admired her courage and leadership at that time. She also talked at some length about political philosophy of her late husband as Prime Minister and increasingly prominent political role of her children. She clearly sees her ~~xxx~~ family as important element in nation's political future.

12. Referring again to high U.S. aid level this year

~~CONFIDENTIAL~~  
Classification

(\$35.5 million), I said that although Congress examined assistance proposals more closely each year, United States was committed to assisting nations which help themselves. I said, however, that Sri Lanka-U.S. ties should not be based on aid alone. Our mutual goal should be ~~development~~ development of long-term comprehensive relationship through which we can discuss any issue of mutual interest candidly and constructively.

13. COMMENT: This was personally very satisfying meeting. Prime Minister was most gracious, most appreciative of American interest and real support for Sri Lanka, and most interested in current American view of difficult global scene. In my judgment, Prime Minister and Sri Lanka over next 18 months will have increasingly important role among non-aligned nations. 1976 Non-Aligned Summit could assume major significance in world political developments and Prime Minister will have key opportunity to promote moderate constructive deliberation -- or to acquiesce ~~in~~ in meaningless anti-Western polemics. I think recent U.S. aid and this visit form good basis to encourage Prime Minister's stated intention to pursue first alternative. We will do well to continue our aid at significant level and to demonstrate our ongoing interest in Prime Minister <sup>pragmatic</sup> Bandaranaike's/personal leadership and her balanced non-alignment.

*cut*

VAN HOLLEN

~~CONFIDENTIAL~~  
Classification

CLASSIFIED BY ~~EMBY~~ PMByrne  
SUBJECT TO GENERAL DECLASSIFICATION  
SCHEDULE OF EXECUTIVE ORDER 11652  
AUTOMATICALLY DOWNGRADED AT TWO YEAR  
INTERVALS AND DECLASSIFIED ON  
DECEMBER 31, 19 81